
















NnrHyan11 HrudayHlaya Surgit.RI lfospitnl Private Limited 
Balance sheet 

Pnrticulara 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Righi ofu,c .,,c1, 
Capital work-in-progress 
Intangible ·ass1.:ls 
Financial assets 

(i) l,oans 
(ii) Other financial assets 

Income lax assets (net) 
Olher non-current assets 
Tntfll non-currenl u11t1 

Cu1Tent Assets 
1nventories 
Financial assets 

(i) Trnde receivables 
(ii) CRsh and cash equivalents 
(iii) Bank balances olher lhan (ii) above 
(iv) Loons 
(v) Other financial asset, 

Other current assets 
Totnl current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIAUILl'l'lt,:S 

li:qully 
Equity share capital 
Other cquily 
Total equity 

Linbilitic, 
Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowing, 
(ii) Lease liabilities 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 
Total non-currenl liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

(i) lforrowi ngs 
(ii) Leese liabilities 
(iii) Tn,de pay•ble, 

Total outslanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total outslanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises and small enterprises 

(iv) Olher financial liabilities 
Other current liabilities 
Provisions 
Totnl current liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Sbffiificant accountiny policies 

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofrhr.se fimrncial statements. 
As per our report of even date attached 

t'or Deloitte llnskin, & Sells LLP 
Chnrtered Accountants 

Monisha Puikh 
Partner 

rilaoc: Ahmcdnbnd 
Dale: May JI , 2021 

Note 
No, 

4 
5 

4 

6 (R) 

7 (•l 
8 

9 (•) 

10 

II 

12 (•) 

12 (b) 
6 (b) 
7 (b) 
9 (b) 

13 (a) 
13(b) 

14 (•) 
IS (o) 
16 (R) 

Asat 
March 31, 2021 

8,180 58 
522 42 
975 48 

2,636 81 

72'/,0I 

49 24 
)77 )9 

82M) 
14,JlS.58 

410 86 

2,488 22 

145 11 

I 00 

8.97 
1,880,57 

3)7.111 

~,172.1~ 

19,607.n 

2,442 59 

p,o69,18J 
(626,89) 

1,683 OJ 

576 67 

8,)74 82 

, in lakhs 

As Rt 
Mal'ch 31, 2020 

~.043 JI 

612.49 

793 42 
J,077 II 

659.2) 

41.70 
)48 85 

I 1,4 6q 

14,9J0.8ll 

512 60 

3,0)7 68 

699 68 

I 00 

10.47 

936 94 

355 15 
5,553,52 

20,434.32 

2,274 88 
!2,H20,ll•) 

(545.35) 

2,56 I 55 
G43 88 

9,19805 

131 44 17 (•) ______ _.a.:;_;__;_ __ _ 107 27 

14 (b) 
IS (b) 

18 

16 (b) 
19 

10,765.96 

1,874 14 
IOR qs 

222 47 

3,630.75 

1,656 45 

1,823 32 

12,510.75 

1,809 66 

12) 63 

124 80 
J,934 I 5 

2,070 95 

294 85 

I 52 .14 17 (b) - --------'-='-'------ 160,811 

9,468.65 8,518.92 

19,607.72 20,484,32 

Forand d of Dire<:tors of 

N - -u".....--, gical Hospital Private Limited 

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 
Managing Director 
DIN : 0701088J 

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru 
Dale: May J 1, 2021 Dale: Mey 31, 2021 

~~' ... 1t.t.r-
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Statement of profit and loss 

Particulars 

INCOME 
Revenue from Operations 
Other income 
Total income (A) 

EXPENSES 
Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 
Changes in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments - (Increase)/Decrease 
Employee benefit expenses 
Professional fees to doctors 
Other expenses 
Expenses before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and exceptional items (B) 

Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation, exceptional Items and tax (A-B) 

Finance costs (C) 
Depreciation and amortisation expense (D) 
Total expenses (E) = (B+C+D) 

Loss before exceptional Items and tax (F) = (A-E) 
Exceptional items (G) 
Loss before tax (H) = (F-G) 

Tax expenses: 
Current Tax 
Deferred tax (credit)/ charge 

Total tax expenses (I) 
Loss for the year (J) = (H-1) 

Otl:er Comprehensive Income (OCI) 
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss 

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (K) 
Total comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year (J+K) 

Earnings/ (Loss) per share 
Basic and diluted (~) 

Significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 
As per our report of even date attached 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Monisha Parikh 
Partner 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: May 31, 2021 

Note 
No. 

20 
21 

22 
23 

24 

25 
26 

38 

34 

3 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

19,425.94 
91.24 

19,517.18 

5,741.02 
101 75 

3,646.54 
4,745.56 
4,549.64 

18,784.51 

732.67 

1,918.07 
1,493.12 

22,195.70 

(2,678.52) 

(2,678.52) 

(2,678.52) 

(2 .53) 

(2.53) 
(2,681.05) 

(11.42) 

(fin lakhs) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

20,106.69 
101.35 

20,208.04 

5,576.75 
(20 83) 

3,703.73 
5,031 .53 
5.062. 14 

19,353.32 

854.72 

2,063.64 
1 483.89 

22,900.85 

(2,692.81 ) 
1,086.99 

(3,779.80) 

(3,779.80) 

(27 .86) 
(27.86) 

(3,807.66) 

(17.30) 

For and on behu.lr <J•fhc: Board of Directors of 
Naruy 11 ·lru 6y11l11ya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

l)ircc or 

n1y 
Place: Bengaluru f"M~02~~ 
Ravi~ 
ChiefFinancial Officer 

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 
Managing Director 
DIN : 07010883 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date: Muy 31 , :Z~ 

~y~ 
Hemish Purushottam 
Company Secretary 

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru 

Date: May 3 I , 2021 --:-:~- Date: May 31, 2021 
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March JI, 2021 

(;t) Equity shnrc capita l 
Particulars 
Equity shares on 10 each issued, subscribed nnd fully pnid up 
Balance as at April I, 2019 
Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20 [refer note 13 (a)] 
Balance as at March 31, 2020 

hnnges in equity share Cllpital during 2020-2 1 [rclcr note 13 (a)I 
Balance as at March 31, 2021 

(b) Other Equity 

(~ 111 l11khs cx,ccpf no of shnres~ 
No. of Shares Amount 

21,465,400 2,146.54 
1.283.400 128.34 

22,748,800 2,274.88 

1. ,677, 100 167.71 
24,425,900 2,442.59 

Reserves & :S urphu1 Hems OlULI 

Particulars Securities premium IR . d . Remeasurements of the net 
reserve etame earnmgs defined benefit plans 

Balance ns at April l , 2019 
Securities Premium on issue of shares 
Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 (net of tax) 
Profit/(Loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income (Oen 
Balance as at March 31, 2020 
Securities Premium on issue of shares 
Profit/(Loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income 
Balance as at March 31, 2021 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
As per our report of even date attached 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Monisha Parikh 
Partner 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: May 31, 2021 

7,034.12 
1,999.48 

. 

. 
9,033.60 
2,431.80 

. 

. 

11,465.40 

(7,931.21) (11.63) 

- -
(103.33) -

(3,779.80) -
- (27.86) 

(11,814.34) (39.49) 

- . 
(2,678.52) -

- (2.53) 

(14,492.86) (42.02) 

r Directors of 

Place: Ben , uru p: May31 , 202 1 A_ 
fk.: vf\_/ ~ 
R,1vlndra ~ 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: May 31, 2021 

(" in lakhs) 

Total other equity 

(908.72) 
1,999,48 
(103,33) 

(3 ,779.80) 
(27.l!6) 

(2,820.23) 
2,431.80 

(2,678.52) 
(2.53) 

(3,069.48) 

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07010883 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: May 31, 2021 

L, 

/f)~-
flcmi ,Z 1oll11m 
Company Secretary 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: May 31 , 2021 



Narayann Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

Statement of Cash flows 

Particulars 

Cash flow from operating activities 

Loss afler tax 
Adjustments: 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Interest income 
Interest income from financial asset at amortised cost 
Properly usage right 
Provision for loss allowance 
Finance costs 
Exceptional items (refer note 38) 

Opcnlling cash flow before working capital changes 

Changes in trade receivables 
Changes in inventories 
Changes in loans. other linancial assets and other assets 
Changes in trade payables, other financials liabilities and other liabilities 
Changes in provision 

Cash generated from operations 

Income taxes paid (net of refund) 
Net cash generated by operating activities (A) 

Cash now from investing activities 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
Consideration for business acquisition (refer note no 36) 

Investment in bank deposit 
Interest received 

Net cash used in investing activities (B) 

Cash flow from financing activities 
Repayment of long-term borrowings 
Proceeds or loan i'rom a related party (rcl'cr note 33 b) 
Repayment of loan to a related party (refer note 33 b) 
Proceeds l'rom issue or equity shares 
I nlerest and other borrowing costs 
Payment 01· lease liabilities (refer note 29) 

Net c,ish generated from financing activities (C) 

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning or the year (refer note 12)• 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end oflhe year (refer note 12) 

Significant accounting policies 3 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

(2,678.52) 

1,493 12 

(3 72) 

(50,81) 

164.10 

(217 02) 

1.918 07 

625.22 
766 48 

IOI 74 

(614 50) 

1,322,34 

13.30 

2,214.58 

(28.54) 

2,186.04 

(1,932.26) 

(2,083.72) 

(5 00) 

1.29 

(4,019.69) 

(855 35) 

2,745 00 

(2,500 00) 

2,599 51 

(388.89) 

(140 67) 

1,459.60 

(374.05) 

(384 .\1~) 
(759.03) 

('tin lakhs) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2020 

(3,779.80) 

1,483 89 

( I 25) 

(46.42) 

164 JO 
277 90 

2,063 64 
1,086 99 

1,249.05 

(366 75) 

(20 82) 

(525 33) 

598 62 

43.54 

978.31 

78 52 

1,056.83 

(536.20) 

(1,984 49) 

(30.00) 

0 15 

(2,550.54) 

(687 13) 

3,650 00 

(2 ,925 no; 
2,12782 

(449.56) 

( 101.86) 

1,614.27 

120.56 
I ~05 54 ) 
(J~,1.~11) 

• Cash and cash cguivalenls includes bank overdrafts that are repavable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
As per our report of even date atlached 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Monisha Parikh 

Partner 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Dale: Mav 31. 2021 

Ill 

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 

Managing Director 
DIN 070 I 0883 

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru 

t1· : ,, '°" & "~;., 
(Lt,,1~ Hemish Purushottam 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: May 3 I. 2021 

Company Secretary 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: May 31, 2021 
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Narayaua Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 

1. Company overview 

Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited ('the Company') was incorporated on October 11, 
2010 under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in establishing, promoting, owning, letting, 
managing, and maintaining hospitals, clinics, health centers, nursing home in all discipline of medicine and 
without limitation to run and administer healthcare schemes. 

2. Basis of preparation of the financial statements 

2.1. Statement of compliance 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as 
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies 
Act 2013 (the 'Act') and other relevant provisions and amendment rules issued thereafter. 

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 
May 3 I , 2021 . 

Details of the Company ' s accounting policies are included in Note 3. 

2.2 Going concern 

The Financial statements have been drawn up on a going concern basis in view of the support letter 
received from Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited, the Holding Company confirming their continued financial 
support to the Company to enable it to continue its operations and settle its obligations as and when they 
become due over the next twelve-month period. 

2.3. Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (~), which is also the Company's functional 
currency. All amounts are presented in ~ in lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise 
stated. 

2.4. Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items: 

Items 
Ce1iain financial assets and liabilities 
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability 

2.5. Use of estimates and judgments 

Measurement basis 
Fair value 
Fair value of plan assets less present value 
of defined benefit obligations 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and 
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

Judgments 
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on 
the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes: 
Note 27 - Assessment of contingent liabilities and commitments 
Note 29 - Leases 
Note 3 7 - Financial instruments 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting m a 
material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2021, is included in the following notes: 

Note 30- recognition of deferred tax assets 
Note 31 - measurement of defined benefit obligation; key actuarial assumptions 
Note 4 - useful life of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets 
Note 6, 7, 11 and 37 - recognition of impairment of financial assets 

2.6. Measurement of fair values 

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for 
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows: 

Level l: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
-- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly (i .e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). 
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 

(unobservable inputs). 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as 
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the 
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the 
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in 
measuring fair values is included in the following notes: 

Note 37 - financial instruments 

3. Significant accounting polices 

3.1. Financial instruments 

a. Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial 
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value 
~ ,rough profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. 

~ 
i 



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

b. Classification and subsec1uent measurement 

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 
amortised cost 
FVTPL 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the 
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual 
cash flows; and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at 
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise 
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or 
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair 
value basis are measured at FVTPL. 

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. 

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial 
recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk 
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a pa11icular period of time and for other basic 
lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the 
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial 
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such 
that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers: 

contingent events that wou Id change the amount or timing of cash flows. 
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features . 

prepayment and extension features; and 
- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non-recourse 

features) . 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the 
prepaymen1 amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the 
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual 
par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the 
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable 
additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value 
of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition. 

V 
-. 
•:::,, 

~/ 
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and 
FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss. 

losses, 

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
amortised cost interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest 

income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit 
or loss . Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. For trade and other 
payable maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying value approximates fair value 
due to short maturity. 

c. Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in 
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
and does not retain control of the financial asset. 

If the ompany enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but 
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets 
are not derecognised. 

Financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled or expire. 

The \ 1111p11ny also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under 
tlle modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified 
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. 

d. Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet 
when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends 
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

~ 

' 



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

3.2. Inventories 

The inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments are valued at lower of cost or net 
realizable value. In the absence of any further estimated costs of completion and estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale, the net realizable value is the selling price. The comparison of cost and net 
realizable is made on an item-by-item basis. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase 
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for value 
added tax wherever applicable, applying the first in first out method. 

3.3. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

3.4. Cash flow statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing, and financing activities of the Company are 
segregated. Bank overdrafts are classified as part of cash and cash equivalents as they form an integral 
part of an entity's cash management. 

3.5. Revenue recognition 

Revenue from operations 

Revenue from medical and healthcare services to patients is recognised as revenue when the related 
services are rendered unless significant future uncertainties exist. Revenue is also recognised in relation to 
the services rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date 
to the extent of services rendered. 

Revenue is recognised net of discounts given to the patients. 

Revenue from sale of medical consumables and drugs within the hospital premises is recognised when 
property in the goods or all significant risks and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the 
customer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be 
derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection. 

'Unbilled revenue' represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the 
patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the 
balance sheet date. 'Unearned revenue' comprises billings in excess of earnings. 

Interest 

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective 
interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts 
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross 
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating 
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the 
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar 
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in 
tbe statement of profit and loss. 

r 
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Sm·gical Hospital Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year- ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

3.6. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant, and equipment are measured at cost which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less 
accumulated depreciation, and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of Property, Plant and 
Equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, 
freight, any directly attTibutable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and 
estimated cost of dismantling and restoring onsite; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 
arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible fixed asset are added 
to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously 
assessed standard of performance. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
asset. 

Depreciation and amortization 

The Company depreciates property, plant, and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line 
basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Assets acquired under business combination are 
amortized over the lower of estimated useful life and term of agreement. The estimated useful lives of 
assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as 
follows: 

Block of assets 
Building 
Electrical installation 
Medical equipment 

Office equipment 
Other equipment including air conditioners 
Furniture and fixtures 
Vehicles 
Computers 

Useful life 
60 years 
10 years 
13 years 

5 years 
15 years 
10 years 

5 years 
3 years 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and 
adjusted appropriately. 

The Company believes that the useful life as given above best represent the useful life of the assets based 
on the internal technical assessment and these useful lives are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of 
the Companies Act, 2013 except vehicles where useful life considered by management is lower. 

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or 
disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting 
date are recognized as capital advance and the cost of property, plant, and equipment not ready for 
intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress. 

3.7. Business combination, goodwill, and other intangible assets 

(a) Business combination 
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred. 

(b) Goodwill 

Goodwi II is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, over the net of the 
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. 

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition 
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

( c) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are stated at cost .less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are 
amortized over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are 
available for use. 

Amoriisation method 

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the 
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the 
industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain 
the expected future c\sh flows from the asset. 

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows: 

Block of assets Useful life 

Computer software 3 years 

Customer Relationship 10 years 

Amo1iisation method 
Useful life and residual values arc reviewed at the end of each financial year. 

3.8. Employee benefits 

Short term employee benefits 

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term 
employee benefits. These benefits include salary and wages, bonus, and ex-gratia. The undiscounted 
amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an 
expense as the related service is rendered by the employees. 

Post-employment benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified 
contributions to separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes 
specified obligations towards employee provident fund and employee state insurance to Government 
administered provident fund scheme and ESI scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The 
Company's contributions are rec.:ognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the 
period in which the employee renders the related service. 

V 



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

Defined benefit plans 

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in 
respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees 
have earned and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to 
determine its present value. The calculation of Company's obligation under the plan is performed 
periodically by an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. 

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, 
which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of 
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income 
(OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for 
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the 
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes as a result 
of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit 
plans are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses in the 
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that 
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of 
profit and loss. 

Compensated absenctis 

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it 
in future service periods or receive cash compensation on any leave accumulated in excess of sixty days 
or on termination of employment. Since the employee has unconditional right to avail the leave, the 
benefit is classified as a short-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such 
compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this 
entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the 
projected unit credit method. 

3.9. Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of that 
asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

3.10. Leases 

The Company's lease asset dasses primarily consist of leases for land & buildings and equipment. The 
Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time 
in exchange for a consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered into on or 
after April 1, 2019. 

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs 
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from _l:.ru: commencement 
date to the end of the lease term. ,.,.,.,.· \a a 
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when 
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in 
the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the 
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension, or termination option. 
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use 
asset has been reduced to zero. 

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the 
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term. 

3.11. Earnings/ (Joss) per share 

The basic earnings/(loss) per share is computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to equity 
shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

The Company does not have potential dilutive equity shares outstanding during the year. 

3.12. Income tax 

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit and loss except 
to the extent that is relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Current income tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and any 
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects 
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if 
any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantially enacted 
by the repo1ting dates. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only ifthere is a legally enforceable right to set off 
the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the assets and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities arc recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilized. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets 

f nd liabilities. ...-- , ... 
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable 
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, 
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously. 

Minimum Alternative tax 

According to Section 11 SJAA of the Income tax Act, 1961, Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid over 
and above the normal Income tax in a subject year is eligible for carry forward for fifteen succeeding 
assessment year for set-off against normal Income tax liability. The MAT credit asset is assessed against 
the entity's normal income tax during the specified period. 

3.13. Impairment 

a. Impairment of financial instruments 

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at 
amortized cost. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit­
impaired. A financial asset is 'credit- impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data: 

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer. 

·- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not 
consider otherwise. 

-- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or 

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for 
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses: 

debt securities that are deterrn ined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and 

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e., the risk of default occurring over 
the expected life of th ' fina11t ial instrument) has not increased significantly s ince initial recognition. 

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 
losses. 

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events 
over the expected life of a financial instrument. 

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events 
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the 
instrnment is less than 12 months). 

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum 
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and 
suppoitable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both 
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's histo~j~al ~xperience and 

l.jformed credit assessment and including forward- looking information. ., · / 1 •.' '''<½,. 
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

Measurement of expected credit losses 

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as 
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in 
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet. 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets. 

Write-off 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that 
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the 
trade receivables does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to 
repay the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be 
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of 
amounts due. 

b. Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company's non-financial assets and inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable 
amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into 
cash-generating units (CGUs) . Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash 
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset). 

The Company's corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a 
corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

3.14. Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will 
be received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company 
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. 
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of 
fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of terminating the contract. 

3.15 Operating Cycle 

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of 
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current. 

3.16 Recent pronouncements: 

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended 
Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and III of Schedule III 
and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division II which relate to companies 
whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 
2015 are: 

Balance Sheet: 
• Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head 'financial liabilities', duly distinguished 
as current or non-current. 
• Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share 
capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period. 
• Specified format for disclosure of" shareholding of promoters. 
• Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and 
intangible asset under development. 

• If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and 
financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used. 
• Specific disclosure under 'additional regulatory requirement' such as compliance with approved 
schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable 
property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial 
personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc. 

Statement of profit and loss: 
• Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and 
cryptci or virtual currency specified under the head 'additional information' in the notes forming part of 
the financial statements. 

The amendments are extensive, and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required 
by law. 
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the ye.ar ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

4 (i) Property, plant and equipment, c.apital work-in-progress and intangible assets 

Gross block Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation / Impairment 
Asat Asat Asal Impairment Asal 

Particulars Depreciation/ April I, 2020 Additions Deletions March 31, 2021 April I, 2020 Deletions Recognised March 31, 2021 
Amortisation 

Refer Note (38) 

Tangible assets ( owned) 

Building [note (a)] 3,460.53 6.19 - 3,466.72 779.09 129.90 - - 908.99 
Electrical installation 358.72 17.24 - 375.96 166.19 33.96 - - 200.15 
Medical equipments 5,229.60 958,62 0. 19 6,188.03 1,639.43 489.55 0 01 2,128.97 
Office equipments 223.73 4.22 - 227.95 148.26 38.94 - ,- 187.20 
Other equipment including air conditioners 1,760.60 50.04 - l ,8 !0.64 537.94 149.18 - 687.12 
Furniture and fixtures 348.96 28,81 - 377.77 187.03 33.19 - - 220.22 
Computers 344.38 35.08 - 379 46 238.18 81.58 - - 319.76 
Vehicles 34.02 - - 34.02 21.11 645 - - 27.56 
Total-A 11,760.54 1,,100.20 0.19 12,860.55 3,717.23 962.75 0.01 - 4,679.97 

Capital work-in-progress 793.42 954.88 772.82 975.48 - - - - -
Total-B 793.42 954.88 772.82 975.48 - - - - -

Intangible assets 
Computer software 10.44 - - I0.44 9.60 0.84 - 10.44 
Customer relationship 4,637.00 - 4,637.00 1.560.73 439.46 - 2.000.19 
Total-C 4.647.44 - - 4,647.44 1,570.33 440.30 - 2.010.63 

Grand total (A+B+C) 17,201.40 2,055.08 773.01 18,483.47 5,287.56 1,403.05 0.01 - 6,690.60 

(a) Represents the cost of construction of building on the leasehold land at Mysore. The said land al Mysore has been leased 10 the Company for 30 years effective April I, 2011 by the holding company, Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited. 

(b) As al March 31, 202 1, properties with a canying amount on' 6230.68 lakhs (previous year: ~ 5733.32 lakhs) are subject 10 first charge 10 secure bank loans. 

y 

(! i_,,_lllkfis) 
Net block 

Asal Asst 
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

2,557.73 2,681.44 
175.81 192.53 

4,059.06 3,590.17 
40.75 75.47 

1,123.52 1,222.66 
157.55 161.93 
59.70 106.20 

6.46 12.91 
8.180.58 8,043.31 

975.48 793.42 
975.48 793.42 

- 0.84 
2.636.81 3.076.27 
2.636.81 3,077.11 

11,792.87 11,913.84 



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

4 (ii) Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and intangible assets 

Gross block Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation/ Impairment 
As al Asal Asal Impairment Asal 

Particulars Depreciation/ April I, 2019 Additions Deletions March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019 Deletions Recognised March 3 I, 2020 
Amortisation 

Refer Note (38) 

Tangible assets (owned) 
Building [note (a)] 3,422.41 38.12 . 3,460.53 651.07 12802 - - 77909 
Electrical inst.allation 351.12 7.60 - 358 72 132.9 1 33.28 - - 166.19 

Medical equipments 4,978.99 250.61 - 5,229.60 1,111.89 444 17 - 83.37 1,639.43 

Office equipments 223 41 0 32 - 223.73 l03 38 40.96 - 3.92 148 26 

Other equipment including air conditioners l ,698.91 6 1.69 - 1,760.60 349.88 149.46 - 38.60 53794 

F umiture and fixtures 339.66 9.30 - 348.96 153.22 33.05 - 0.76 187.03 

Computers 325 10 19.28 - 344.38 145.45 92.73 - 238 18 
Vehicles 34.02 - - 34.02 13.60 6.80 - 0.71 21.11 
Total-A 11,373.62 386.92 - 11.760.54 2.661.40 928.47 - 127.36 3,717.23 

Capital work-in-progress 20.60 772.82 - 793.42 - - - - -
Total- B 20.60 772.82 - 793.42 - - - - -

Goodwill 790.00 - - 790.00 - - - 790.00 790.00 
Total-C 790.00 - - 790.00 - - - 790.00 790.00 

Intangible assets 
Computer software 10.44 - - 10.44 7.95 l.65 - - 9.60 

Customer relationship 4.637.00 . - 4,637.00 927 40 463 70 - 169.63 1.560.73 
Total-D 4,647.44 - - 4.647.44 935.35 465.35 - 169.63 1;570.33 

Grand total (A+B+c+D) 16.831.66 1.159.74 - 17,991.40 3,596.75 1,393.82 - 1,086.99 6,077.56 

(a) Represents the cost of construction of building on the leasehold land at Mysore. The said land at Mysore bas been leased to the Company for 30 years effective April I, 201 I by the holding company, Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited. 

(b) As at March 31, 2020, properties with a canying amount on 5733.32 lakhs (previous year: t 5,895.05 lakhs) are subject to first charge to secure bank loans. 

\" 

(f inlllkhs1 
Nethlock 

Asal Asal 
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

2,681.44 2,771.34 
192.53 218.21 

3,590.17 3,867.10 
75.47 120.03 

1,222.66 1,349.03 
161.93 186.44 
106.20 179.65 

12.91 20.42 
8.043.31 8,712.22 

79342 20.60 
793.42 20.60 

- 790.00 

- 790.00 

0.84 2.49 
3.076.27 3.709.60 
3.077.11 3,7U.09 

11,913.84 13.234.91 



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

5 (i) Right of use assets 

({ in lakhs) 
Gross block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block 

Category ofROU asset Asat Asat As at 
Depreciation/ 

Asat Asat Asat 
April 1, 2020 Additions Deletions March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 

Amortisation 
Deletions March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

Tangible assets 

Land 370.40 - - 370.40 16.71 16.71 - 33.42 336.98 353.69 
Equipment 332.16 - - 332.16 73.36 73,36 - 146.72 185.44 258.80 

Grand total 702.56 - - 702.56 90.07 90.07 - 180.14 522.42 612.49 

(ii) Right of use assets 
('f in lakhs) 

Gross block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block 

Category of ROU asset Asat As at As at 
Depreciation/ 

Asat Asal Asat 
April 1, 2019 Additions Deletions March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019 

Amortisation 
Deletions March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Tangible assets 
Land - 370.40 - 370.40 - 16.71 - 16.71 353.69 . 
Equipment - 332. 16 - 332 16 - 73-36 - 73.36 258.80 . 

Grand total - 702.56 - 702.56 - 90.07 - 90.07 612.49 . 

~ Refer note 29 for disclosures related to ROU assets and liabilities 



Narayan• Hrudayalay■ Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
NoteJ to the r.nancial ,tatements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

Lcum11 (Ututcu1~1l, con$hlcrcd good unlto othcrwltr: 11.a1ed) 

Partitulan 

(a) Non-current 
To parties other than relate,/ parties 
Securily deposits 

(b) Current 
To partiu other than relate,/ partie,'f 

Securi t de Josi" 

Other financial Assets 
(U11ncurrd , wn•IU'e1·td good u'nla• oth 111·w hu: 11,uc,d) 

Particulars 

(a) Non-current 
To parties other than relate,/ pnrlies 
Bank deposits (due lo mature after 12 months from reporting date)• 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 

• above deposits are restrictive as it pertains to bank guarantee. 

(b) Current 
To parties other than relate,/ parties 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 
Receivables from Dharamshila Cancer Foundation and Resellfch Centre 
Unbilled revenue 
Olhcrs (rerc, nOlu )9) 

Jncome tax assets (net) 

PArticulars 

AdVRncc income rnx 111nl l~x dedu1;1cd 111 source (net Qr provlttion•) 

Other assets 
( 1llr:.curt.d , c-0111l<lerc1I good un1e-Jli olhrnvi!" uo1t1f) 

Pt1rticulars 

(a) Non-current 
To partie,f other than related p11rtiel· 
Capitol advances 
Prepaid Rent 
Property usage right 
Prepaid expenses 

(b) Current 
To parties other than related parties 
Prepaid Rent 
Prepaid expenses 
Property usage right 
Advance to vendors 
Other loans and advances 
OtherBSSet 

10 Inventories 

y 

(Vulut d 11t Im.-« of aur mu/ mt.I realisable w1/11~} 

Particulars 

Medical consumables, drugs and ism9ical instruments 
Less: Provision for write-down to net realisable value 

The inventories are hypothecated as security as part of working capital facility 

(' In lnkh, ) 
Asat As at 

M•rch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

727.01 659.23 
727.01 659.23 

8.97 1047 
8.97 10.47 

(tin lnkl,.;) 
As Al ASRI 

March JI , 2021 March JI , 2020 

45,00 40 00 
4,24 1.70 

49,24 41.70 

0, 15 0. 11 
1,008,99 905.36 

72.68 31.47 
798.75 

1880.5"/ 936. 94 

(1:' in l•khs) 

As at As At 
Morch JS, 1021 Mnrch JI. 2020 

)77.39 348 85 
377.39 348.85 

(l in l•klu) 
As al As at 

Mnr<h 3!, 1021 Merrh 31, 2020 

8 14 S 11 
302 49 362 77 
529 72 983 01 

26 30 3,80 

866.65 1,354.69 

60.49 60 66 
I IS 29 40 79 
106.00 164 10 
SI 34 67 56 

4 29 4.41 
17.63 

337,41 355.15 

(~ In lnkh•J 
As et As at 

M11rch JI, 20?1 Mnrct, 31, 2020 
433 ,70 540,65 

(22.84) (28.05) 
410.86 512.60 

' 

~ 
/ 
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Narayana Ilrudayalaya Sursical Hospital Private Limited 
Noles to the nnantial stntements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

11 Trade!' rcuiv1,h lu 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 

Unsecured, considered doubtful 

Loss allowance 
11sceuml consldorcd doubtful 

NM trade rccelvNhl<'I 

Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below: 
Trade receivable (refer note JJ (c)) 

Expected credit Ion 11llowance 
Net trade rc.cclvnblu from reh1ted parties 

·-

Asal 

Mnrr.h J I , 2021 
2,4~1L22 

427.JO 

2,9 15.51 

(1127.30) 
2,488.21 

(t 111 lakh1) 
As at 

M11r<h J\, 2020 
J ,0)7 68 

644.)2 

J,6U.0o 

(644.J2) 

J 037.66 

2 60 

2.60 

The Company uses II provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable The provision matrix is based on Its historically observed default rates over the 
expecled life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates At every year end, the historically observed default rates are updated and changes in forward­
looking estimaLes are analysed The expecled credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix The 
provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows 

Calegory 

ESI/CGI IS/SCI ll!MES 
Olhor, 

The Company's exposure to credit risk and currency risks, and loss allowances are disclosed in note 37 
The receivables are hypothecated as security as part of working capital facility 

12 .d111nd hnnk balk11cc.1 

Particulars 

(a) Cash and ush equivalent, 
Cash on hand 

Balance with banks 
-In current accounts 

(b) Bank balances other than above 
-In deposiL accounls (due lo mature wilhin 12 11mn1hs of the reporting dale)• 

• above dcpci:ai11r are restriclive as il pertains lo margin money 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the followings : 

Pnticulars 

nsh on hand 
Balance with banks 

-On current accounts 

Lo.ss. Bank overdroH u,cd for c8!h rnannsomont p,uposc; (rufor not~ l4(b)) 
11Jh ,md c,u:h CtJuivnl,nts in 1he 1rnte.111cut or cAsh nows 

13 {n) l,;,1ul1y ' """' apil1I 

Particulars 

Au1horbtcl 
2,50,00,000 equity shares (previous year: 2,J0,00,000 equity shares) of { IO each 

Nil Preference shares (previous year: 20,00,000 equity shares) of f l 0 each 

Issued, subscribed ,rnd pflid up 

2,44,25,900 (p revious yea r: 2,27,48,800) equity shores of ~ IO aech, fully paid up 

(i) Reconciliation or the equity shares outslanding at the beginning And at the end of tht year: 

Within due date 

2.54%- 3 )9% 

OA7',;.,.7.63o/• 

Particulars 
1 Ht Morch J I, 2021 

Shares OUtil ,1iruJi"8 at the beginning of the year 
Shares issued during the year 
Shares outstandinll. at the end of the veer 

(U) Rights, preferences and restrictions atlached to equity shares 

Numbt.r or l hfltC!I 
22,748,800 

1,677, I 00 

24 425,900 

Amoum 
2,274 88 

167 71 

2,442.59 

Due date lo I Year More than 1 year rrom 
1.h1r: date 

9. S2%-16.81% 

1.1w~21 20"/4 

As et 
M•rch ll 2021 

7 42 

137 69 

14-5-11 

I 00 
1.00 

A, al 
I\IArch 31 1 2021 

7 42 

137.69 

145 11 

904 ,14 

(759.0J) 

Asfll 
M1rch JI 2021 

2,500 00 

2,442 59 

2,442.59 

27,98%-64 31% 

28.Sl¾-SG IOI~ 

(! in l1lkh1) 
As at 

MatchJI 2020 

25,)8 

674,30 

699.68 

I 00 

1.00 

As Rt 

urdl JI, 1020 
25 38 

674,JO 
699,68 

l ,0~4.66 
(384.98) 

(! In l11kh1) 
As RI 

Mord•Jl 2020 

2,300 00 

200 00 

2,274 88 

2,274.88 

(t in h1ldu, uupt no or t h111't!) 
/\> al March JI, 2020 

Number ofshnres 
21,465,400 

1,28),400 

.Z 748 800 

A111011111 

2,146 54 

128 )4 
2 274_88 

The ront1iany ha•• sii111'• cl•n of equhy sruircs referred 10 ill e,1uity shore, h•ving • nominal value of~ 10 each. /\ccordlnjdv. ail equity shar • rank equally with regard to dividend 
and shil r~ In the ·om1,1my'll rc,ldual as,cts, l111ch holder or equ \y ~llfes h, ontit1c.d to one- vote per share. Tho C1qlt1ly ~luu~ rm; en titled to rccalve dividend as declared from time to 
time, 1110 clM dend 1iro11u,cd by the llo.ud oJ'Oinmtoro iu •bjctl 10 tho approval of1he , hueholders in the oMUlng Annu,I Gcncl'lll Mcatlng. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts The 
~ distribution will be in proportion to lhe number of equity share, held by shareholders 



Narayana llrudayal~ye Surgical Hospitel Private Limited 

Notes to the rinanciRI ,tatements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (conlinued) 

(iii) Shares held by Holding Company 

Particulars 

Equity shares on IO each fully paid up held by 

~Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 

(iv) PArticu1us of shRreholdns holding more than 5% equity sharu: 

Particulars 

Nerayana Hrudayalava Limltcd 

,u at Morch 3 1, 2021 
Number or share, Amount 

24.425.894 2,442,59 

As at March JI, 2021 

Number o!shRres"' % holding 

24,425,894 99 99¾ 

(v) The Company has nol bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the last balance sheel dale 

{' in lakhs1 c.u:ept no or sla,rc: ) 
/u at March 31, 2020 

Number or11h•r~ Amount 

22,748,794 2,274.88 

As at March JI, 2020 

Nmuhrir or shares" % holding 

22.748. 794 99 99¾ 

Fur1h~r. rhr: C:nmp,my h~s not issued 1my shares For consideration other than cesh during the period of five years immediately preceding the la9t balance sheet date 

• Number of shares excludes 6 shares held by registered shareholders holding on behalf of beneficial shareholder i e Narayana Hrudayelaya Limited 

IJ (b) 0Lher Equity 

PRrticuh,rs 

Rtscr-'t.5 nnd rurphu 
Securities premium reserve 

At the commencement of the year 

Add: Securities premium on issue of equity shares during the year 

At the end of the year 

Retained earnings 

At the commencement of the year 

Add: Loss after lax trnnsferred from statement of profit and loss 

Add: Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 (net of tax) 
At the end of the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

At the commencement of the year 

Add: Addition during the year 
At the end of the year 

Securitie.s premium resenie 

As Rl 

Mnrch 31. 202 1 

9,033 60 

2431 .80 
11 465,40 

(11,814.34) 
(2,678 52) 

(14,492.86) 

(39 49) 

(2 .53) 

(42.02) 

(3,069.48) 

{! ho lnklu) 

As at 
M,rch JI. 202.0 

7.034 12 
I 999 48 

9,0JJ.60 

(7,931 21) 
(3,779 80) 

(103 .33) 

(11,814.34) 

(11 63) 

(27.86) 

(39.49) 

(2.820.23) 

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue or shares It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

Retained earnings 

Retained earnings represenls prior year undistributed earnings / accumulated losses 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Other Comprehensive Income represents actuarial gain or loss or re~measurement of defined benefits obligation 

14 Oorrowin .s 

SI. 
No 

(I) 

(ii) 

(Iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(vi) 

ParticulRrs 

(a) Non~current 

Secured 

Term loans 

From banks (refer note I) 

Less: Current maturity of long term debt [refer note 16 (b)] 

(b) Current 
To parties other than relate,t parties 
Secured 

Bank overdralts ( refer note II) 
To relate,/ parties (refer note 33) 
Unsecured 

Loans repavable on demand ( refer note 1l ) 

Ttm~ h11t.ni from h:nnk., • 

Delails or repayment terms, inlerest and maturity 

Term Loan from HSBC { 1700 00 lakhs (previous year: { 2550 00 lakhs) repayable in IO quarterly instalments from reporting 
date Interest is charged@ 7 00% pa (previous year 8 90%) 

Term loan from Yes Bank : t 252 85 lakhs (previous year: ~ 254 80 lakhs) repayable in 29 quarterly instalments from May 
2018 Interest is charged@S,50¾ pa (previous year : 9 80¾) 

Term loan from Yes Bank { 229 21 lakhs (previous year: ! 230 98 lakhs) repayable in 29 quarterly instalments rrom May 
2018 lnteresl is charged@8,S0¾ pa (previous year 9_80%) 

Term loan from Yes Bank r 89 SJ lakhs (previous year: t 90,22 lakhs) repayable in 29 quarterly instalments from November 
2018 Interest is t hirgcd @ B,50% pa (provl011~ year: 9 80%) 

Term loan from Yes Bank · { 67 47 lakhs (previous year: { 67,99 lakhs) repayable in 29 quarterly instalments from March 
2019~ Interest is charged @ 8,50¾ pa (previous year : 9 80%) 

Term loan from Yes Bank : { 54 27 lakhs (previous year: t 54,69 lakhs) repayable in 29 quarterly instalments from May 2018 
Interest is charged@ 8.50% po (previous year: 9.80%} 

\' In lnkhs 
As al As at 

M•n:h JI. 202 1 M•rch 31.2020 

2,393 33 3,248 68 

(710.30) (687.13) 
1,68Ml 2 561.55 

904 14 1,084,66 

97000 725.00 
I 874.14 I 809.66 

Nature ofsecurity 

Secured via mortgage of title deeds on the 
immovable property of Narayana Hospitals 

Private Limited 

Exclusive charge on Movable Fixed assets (presenl 

and future) and current assets of the borrower 
(present and future) excluding those charged to 

any other lender/vendor and those charged to Yes 
Bank LC facilities, corporate guarantee and 

security from Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 
(Holding Company) 



Narayana HrudRynlaya Surgical Hospitnl Privnte Limited 
Notc.s to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

II Overdrnn (acilitia, working capital loan Rnd commercial p11pen from bank : 
(i) Overdr,f\ Facility From Yes Bank Limited, 904 14 \akhs (previous year: , 1084 66 lakhs) carry interest rate of0 30% above the 3 month MCLR (previous year :0,30% above the 3 

mon1 h.1 MCLR), tn be paid on monthly basis It is secured by current assets (both present and future), subservient charge on movable fixed assets end corporate guarantee of 
Nftr11yi1111' I lrudayalaya Limited. 

(ii) Loan from Narayan• Hrudayalaya Limited:, 910,00 \akhs (previous year: , 725.00 \akhs) {refer note 33 (c)] 

15 L<ni• U1billlles 

Particulars 

(a) Non-current 
Opening Lease li,bilily 
Additions during the period 
Finance cost accrued during the period 
Lease payment 
Closing Lease li,bility 
Less: Current lease liability 

(b) Current 
Lease li•billt 

16 OihCI' nu• ncJ•I 1\ubilltl .. 

P•rticulnrs 

(a) Non-current 
To parlieJ t1ther tllnn relat~,I parties 

Liability towards business acquisition 
Creditors for capital goods 

(b) Current 
To parties other titan relate,I pnrdes 

Liability towards business acquisition 
Current maturities of long-term borrowings [refer note 14 (a)] 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Deposits Received 

rcditon for capital goods 

The 0 m p1LD)'
1S exposure to liquidity 1l:ik and currency risk are dlscloi1ad ln note 3 7 

Particulars 

(a) Non-current 
Provision for employee beneftls (Refer Nole 31) 
Gratuity 

(b) Currrnt 
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 3 I) 
Gratuily 
CompcnAtcd absences 

18 1~rrule l)A)'ill lJlu 

Particul~n 

TolOI outm 11dinH due,, nf micro ontorpri,.., u,id •m•II cn1oq11h0> (Rclilr Not• 12) 
·1'outl 0utst111dl111i due,r of crcdllont othlll' HuU1 1nlum a11d small ct1terprh:c:, 

'will, rospcot to amount P•>·•blo to rol■ tod portlc, (1crer no te lJ (c)] 
The Compony•• <><pb•uro to aurcnoy and llqultiily risk, rcl•tcd to trade 1111yoblc 11 dlsclored in 11010 n 

19 Other t Un(lUI liabilitiu 

Pardculan 

To pnrt,'es other than rr. fllt t.d parlll!J 
Contract liabilities 
Be.lances due to statutory/ government authorities 
Unearned revenue (refer note 39) 
Other linbllitllld 

As at 
Mart h 31. 2021 

767.5\ 

58.B\ 
(140.67) 
685.65 

(\08,98) 
576,67 

108.98 
I08,98 

As RI 
March 31. 2021 

8,31 I 60 
63 22 

8.374.82 

802,57 
710 30 

5,01 
\2.30 

12627 

I 656.45 

Asat 
March 31, 2021 

13 I 44 
131.44 

28 45 
124,09 
152.54 

Asat 
Mt11·ch JI . 2021 

222.<17 
3,630 .75 
J 853.U 

A, al 
Morch 3 1. 2021 

62.10 
112.78 

1,648 .16 
0,28 

I 813.32 

(f In \ok\11) 
As at 

Morch 31. 2020 

805 89 

63 48 
(\01 86) 
767.51 

(123 ,63) 
64J,8R 

123 63 
123.63 

<' In lnkhs) 
As nl 

Mnrcl 31 2020 

9,114 17 
83 88 

9,198.05 

606 23 
687 13 

12, 13 
12 70 

752,76 
l ,070,95 

, In lokh1) 
As at 

M n I 31 2020 

\07 27 
107,27 

27,04 
133,84 
160.88 

(1: in lnlchs) 
As Rt 

Mnrrh Jl. 2020 
124,80 

),934, \S 
4,ll5M,95 

(~ in l•khs) 

Mnrd, 

,• 

As al 
I , 202U 

157 00 
93 15 
44 42 

0.28 
294.115 

' ., \ 
··;;;•, \ 
-:; 

~.!. 

:J> ..... 
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

20 Revenue from npernHons 

Particulars 

Income from medical and healthcare services 
Sale of medical consumables and drugs 
Other operating revenue: 

Income from other healthcare services 

Refer notes below 

(i) Category of Customer 

Cash 
Cred.it 

(ii) Nature of treatment 

In-patient 
Out-patient 
Sale of medical consumables and drugs 
Others 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

13,406.49 
6,011.43 

8.02 
19,425.94 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

11,250.42 
8,175.52 

19,425.94 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

10,095.03 
3,311.46 
6,011.43 

8.02 
19,425.94 

~ in lakhs) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

14,733.83 
5,367.85 

5.01 
20,106.69 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

12,044.89 
8,061.80 

20,106.69 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

10,950.62 
3,783.21 
5,367.85 

5.01 
20,106.69 

(iii) The revenue from rendering Healthcare services and Pharmaceutical products satisfies 'at a point in time' recognition criteria as prescribed by Ind 
AS 115 

(iv) Revenue from sale of medical and healthcare services is net of rebates/ incentives/ discounts for the year ended March 31, 2021 amounting to '{ 
4,889.91 lakhs (Previous Year'{ 3,683.79 lakhs). 

(iv) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations 

Porticulors 

Contract liabilities 

(v) Use of Practical expedients 
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

62.10 
62.10 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

157.00 
157.00 

The Company has applied the practical expedient with respect to non disclosure of information in respect of remaining performance obligations 
considering the fact that the company's performance obligations, i.e. the treatment in case of healthcare segment has an original expected duration 
of one year or less. 

21 Other income 

Particulars 
Interest income on 

- Bank deposits 
- Income Tax Refund 

Interest income from financial asset at amortised cost 
Miscellaneous income 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

3.72 

50.81 
36.71 
91.24 

('{ in lakhs) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

1.25 
19.90 
46.42 
33.78 

101.35 



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

22 Changes in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments - (Increase)/Decrease 

Particulars 

Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Inventory at the end of the vear 

23 Employee benefit expenses 

Particulars 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 31) 
Staff welfare expense.~ 

24 Other expenses 

Particulars 
Hospital operating expenses 

Rent 
Patient welfare expenses 
Power and fuel 
Hospital general expenses 
House keeping expenses 

Medical gas charges 
Biomedical wastage expenses 
Repairs and maintenance 

- Hospital equipments 
- Buildings 
- Others 

Administrative expenses 
Traveling and conveyance 
Security charges 
Printing and stationery 
Rent 
Advertisement and publicity 
Legal and professional fees (refer note (i) below) 
Telephone and communication 
Bank charges 
Insurance 
Rates and taxes 
Foreign Exchange Loss 

Provision for loss allowance 
Corporate Social Responsibility 
Subscription & Books & Periodicals 
Loss on Property, plant and equipment discarded 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Total (A) 

Total (8) 

Total (A+B) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

512.61 
410.86 

101.75 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

3,430.17 
166.22 
50.15 

3,646.54 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

379.21 
56.55 

689.93 
366.01 
748.46 

41.25 

6.54 

400.68 
122.54 
389.85 

3,201.02 

117.29 

190.48 
94.70 

222.22 
592.58 
121.76 
68.18 

58.30 
14.65 
44.78 

16.11 
(2 I 7.02) 

15.97 

8.62 
1,348.62 

4,549.64 

"' C: 

"' ~ 

ff in lakhs) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

491.78 
512.61 
(20.83) 

(fin lakhs) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

3,489.95 
157.91 

55.87 
3,703.73 

(fin lakhs) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

545.97 
60.70 

687.37 
281.35 
669.28 

28.59 
7 02 

346.11 
98.48 

305.40 
3,030.27 

115.98 
190.38 

119.72 
140.40 
877.48 

81.55 
60.55 
63.02 
11.88 

66.82 
0.12 

277.90 

0.05 
17.69 
0.01 
8.32 

2,031.87 

5,062.14 

-··· ,1\0'V il s,,.,, ·, 

"'to 
,i,*._~.,. 

fl . 



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

(i) Paymcnl lo auditors• 

Particulars 
As an auditor 

(i) Audit fee 
(ii) Other attest services 

*excluding GST 

25 Finance costs 

Particulars 
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

- term loans from banks 
- bank overdraft 
- others 

Interest expense on lease liabilities 
Interest expense on business acqu isi tion 

26 Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Particulars 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 

Depreciation of Righi of use Assets (rctcr note 5) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

8.00 
5.50 

13.50 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

221.43 

96.53 
63.81 
58.81 

1477.49 
1,918.07 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

962.75 
440.30 

90.07 
1,493.12 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

8.00 
5.00 

13.00 

('tin lakhs) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

319.60 
80.17 
56.36 

63.48 
1.544.03 
2,063.64 

('tin lakhs) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

928.47 
465 .35 

90.07 
1,483.89 



Narayua Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements ror the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

27 Contingent liabilities and commitments 

(i) Contingent liabililics 

The Company docs nol hove any c.onlingcnl liobilily as on Morch JI , 2021 (previous )'COr: nil) 

(ii) Commitments 

Eslimolcd t11nounls of conlraClS remaining lo be executed on copilol account (nel of ndvnnces) and nol provided for omounls tot I 2M lokhs (Murch JI, 2020: t 14 52 lokhs) 

28 Segment reporting 

Operating Segments 

Ind AS 108 "Opcr11ting Segment" ("Ind AS 108") establishes standards for the wny th11.t public business enterprises report informotlon about operating scgmcnt.s and related disclosures ubout producl.S nnd 
services, geographic orcos, and major customers Based on the "mQnagcmcnt approach" os defined in hid AS I 08, Opcrollng segments arc lo be reported in a manner consistcnl with Lhe internal reporting 
provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) The CODM evnluoles lhe Company's performwu:e nnd ollocetes resources on overall basis. The Company's sole operating segment is therefore 
'Medical and Heohhcore Services ' Accordingly, there 11ro no additional disclosure to bo provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the fin110ci11I stotemenl.s, 

Geo2raphical informalion 
Geographical informolion analyses the Compllny'S revenue and non-current osscts by Lhc Company's counlry of domicile (i c Indio) and other countries. In presenting the geographical infonnotion, segment 
revenue hos been based on the gcogrophicol locntion of the cw;tomers and segment assets which have been based on the gcogrnphieal localion of the assets, As al Morch 31, 2021 , the Company has only one 
geographical location i c~ India, with rcspccl to location of asscl.s and location of customers, further deteils about gcogrophieol information is not applicable 

19 Leasu 
Transition 
The Company has odoplccl Ind AS 116 'Leases', cffcclive onnuol reporting period bcgiMing April I, 2019 Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 - Leases and related interpretation ond guidance. The Company hos 
applied lhe stondnrd Lo its leases, using the modified reLrospccti\'e approach, with the cumulative effect of initinlly opplying the Standard, recognized on the dale of initial application (April I, 2019). 
Comparative infonnotion hms not been restated, 

Accordingly. the Company recorded the lease liability al the pre5enl value of the lcDSe pn)'lllcnlS discounted ot the incremcntol borrowing rate and the right of use asset nt its currying amount as if the standord had 
been opplicd since the commencement date of the lease, but discounted al the Company's incremental borrowing rule al the date of initial opplicalion 

The following is a summ11ry or prectical expedients elected by the Company on initial application: 
Applied II single discount rote lo n portfolio of leases with reasonabl y similar choraelcrislics in similar cconom1c cnv1ronmcnt 
Treated lenses with remaining lease Lenn of less than 12 months os if they were "short lcrm leases" 
Applied the exemption nol lo rocogni1.c right-of-use assets and li11bilities fo r leases of low value assets 
Appliculion of hindsight, in dctcm1ining the lease tenn if the conliacl contains options to extend or terminate the lease 

On tnrnsition lo Ind AS I l<i, the Company recognised right-of-use nssets amounting to f 702 5(, lokhs, related nccumulalcd depreciation amounting to nil, lease liobililics amounting to f HOS 89 lakhs and f 
103 33 lokhs i11 retained enmings as al April I, 2019 The Company hns discounted lease poymenls using the .ipplicable incremental borrowing rote os ot April I. 2019, which is 8% for measuring the lease 
liability 

(i) Tho rollowlng 11 tho brook-up o l\ urra1l nnd rM.,n-t.utTCnt lc:u.so lmbl! lhc, ,11 i1\ Mn.~h '3 I, 2021 

Parliculars 

CulrGtll lC"nsc liabUitfd 
Non-oum11t Jc1.5e liobiliues 

(ii) The rollo11lnfl. U lltit lllO\"aucnl jn tha lt:11110 llabnl1h1J1 durin~ 1ho )~0rMl0d MIDich l 11 :!021 1md Mardi) 1
1
2020 

Parliculars 

0 1>0:11 ns Le.lsc liability 
Finance cosl accrued during the period 
Lease J,:,\11-.!nl 

(iii; The t11blo below provides details regarding lhe conlroclual mcturilics of rental p11ymcnts as of Morch 31, 202 I 

Less 111111 1 
Parllr.ulan l'Clllr 
Cuimt1c h1 nl rcnlal pn1•me11l~ U0,89 

159.39 

The table below provides details regarding the co1\lroelual maturities of rental payments as of March 3 l, 2020 

P11r ticul1ra 
Contr11Ctu.2l 1a1Url ,l!A~111cnu 

JO Dererred lax assets/(liabilities) 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities .ire nllributablc to the followings: 

Particulars 

Dth:: r tcd tu asset 
Provision for doubtful receivables 
Provision for gratuily 
Provision for compensated absences 
On brought forward loss 
Provision for slow & non moving inventory 
Bonus payable 
Unab1or'bed [kpl'tdmliQ11 
Tolnl llcfc-rud In 11n et 

Deferred tax liability 

Leu than 1 

1411~7 
140.6? 

E.~(l( dl,lfJHlC:lnthll1C1n fb:«I ■ &"i;ot Lrndo.i lnt(Jmc T11:-t i'\ t:I, 1961 a,c:rdepnx.1n11~n 11ndcr C:omp1111iei AL't 
Tuht,I 1l1:re.rred tu \l1WIU1 t 

I - 2 years 2-5 years 

15~8Y IAH9 
159.89 187.49 

I -1 years 2-5 years 

li9.K9 lODk 
159.89 :1os.Js 

Asat 
March 31 , 2021 

108 ~i 
576.61 

Asat 
M1.rc:h l l 1 l OZI 

7fo75 1 
5R RI 

U4a.67J 
68~.65 

More than 5 years 

616, IU 
6J6.IO 

More than 5 years 

(,78.10 
678.10 

Asat 
Morch JI , .1021 

5,50 
22,63 
14.18 

1,730.57 
0,80 
7.91 

97.9K 
l ,8?9.57 

{&11 ,?1) 
\811 .77) 

1.067.80 

~ deferred lax assets ha, not been recognised bccnusc it is nol probnblc lhal future tnxoblc pro~l will be o\'oilablc against which Lhc Company can use the bcncfols thereon 

(! In I, kh.,) 
Asat 

M11l'ch JI , 2010 

767.51 

(f In l, kh o) 
Asat 

1\fnrch JI, 2020 

805 89 
fiJ 48 

(IOI.RM 
767.51 

tin lokh,) 

Tolal 

1,14),)7 

I 14J.J7 

in h1khj 

Total 

1,2A4 04 
I l!W.04 

(t in lakhs 
Asal 

March J I, 2020 

5 95 
19 64 
18 10 

1.652 73 
0 56 
B 45 

97.~A 
l ,!IOJ.41 

( 1, 197 92') 
(1 ,191.92) 

605.49 



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

31 Employee benefits 

Defined contribution plan 
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and employee state insurance to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. Under the 
plan, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits. 

The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance for the year aggregated to'{ 132.30 lakhs (previous year: '{ 
132.09 lakhs). 

Defined benefit plan 
The Company operates post-employment defined benefit plan that provide gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous 
service, to receive one-half month's salary for each year of completed service at the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is administered by a trust formed for this purpose 
and is managed by Kotak Life Insurance. The Company's obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial valuation 
carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company recognizes actuarial gains and losses immediately in the statement of profit and 
loss. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheet date. 

A. Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial 
statements as at balance sheet date: 

Particulars 

Defined benefit obligations liability 
Plan assets 

Net defined benefit liability 
Liability for compensated absences 

Total employee benefit liability 
Non-current 
Current 

B. Reconciliation of net defined benefit (assets) liability 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

209.82 
49.93 

159.89 
124.09 
283,98 
131.44 
152.54 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components . 

i) Reconciliation of present values of defined benefit obligation 

Particulllrs 

Defined benefit obligation as at I April 
Benefits paid 

-By the fund 

-By the Company 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 

Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised in other comprehensive income 
-changes in demographic assumptions 

-changes in financial assumptions 
-experience adjustments 

Defined benefit oblig111ions as at JI March 

ii) Reconciliation of present values or plan assets 

Particulars 

Plan assets at beginning of the year 
Interest income 
Employer contribution 

Benefits paid 

Adjustment to opening fair value 
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets 

Plan assets at the end of the vear 

Net defined benefit liability 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

184.08 

(3.00) 
(10.69) 

28.49 
8.09 

(0.21) 

18.97 
(15.91) 

209.82 

As at 
March 31 , 2021 

49.77 
2.66 
0.18 

(3.00) 

0.32 
49.93 

159.89 

~ in lakhs) 
As at 

March 31. 2020 
184.08 

49.77 
134.31 
133,84 

268.15 
107.27 

160.88 

(~ in lakhs) 
As at 

March 31, 2020 
148.88 

(10.70) 

(11.59) 
22.56 

7.81 

3.70 
2.13 

21.29 

184.08 

(~ in lakhs) 
As at 

March 31, 2020 
68.89 

4.55 
0.44 

(10 70) 

(12.67) 
(0.74) 

49.77 
134.31 



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

31 Employee benefits (continued) 

C. i) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Particulars 

Current service cost 
Interest cost 

ii) Remeasurements recognised in other comprehen ive Income 

Particulars 

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation 

Return on plan assets excluding interest income 

D. Plan Assets 
Plan nsscts comprises of the Following: 

Particulars 

Pooled assets with an insurance company 

The nature of assets allocation of plan assets is in government securities and debt instruments of high credit rating. 

E. Defined Benefit obligation 
i) Actuarial assumptions 
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages): 

Principal actuarial assumptions 

Attrition rate 

Discount rate 

Mortality rate 

Future salary increases 

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables. 

For the year ended 

March 31 . 2021 
28.49 

5.43 
33.92 

For the year ended 
March 31 , 2021 

2.85 
(0.32) 

2.53 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

49.93 

49.93 

As at 
March 31 2021 

Upto 
Level 6 = 43%, Level 7 

and above = 35% 

4.41%-4.64% 

IALM (2012-14) 
Ultimate 

7.90% for First Year 
6% thereafter 

('{ in lakhs) 
For the year ended 

March 31 . 2020 
22.56 

3.26 
25.82 

('(' in l11khs) 
For the year ended 

March 31 , 2020 
27.12 

0.74 
27.86 

(~ in lakh ) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2020 

49.77 

49.77 

As at 
March 31 2020 

Upto Level 6 = 40%, 
Level 7 and above = 

73% 

5.35% 

IALM (2012-14) 
Ultimate 

0% for First Year 6% 
thereafter 

As of March 31, 2021, the plan assets have been invested in insurer managed funds for Dharamshila unit and the expected contributions to the fund during the year ending 
March 31, 2021, is approximately f 42.11 lakhs (previous year: f38.66 lakhs). 

Maturity profile of defined benclit' oblig11tion 
Particulars 
1st following year 

2nd following year 
3rd following year 
4th following year 

5th following year 

Year 6 to 10 
Above 10 cars 

ii) Sensitivity analysis 

~ in lakh ) 
Amount 

57.24 
42.51 

30.61 
22.39 
16.41 

33.44 

9. 13 

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit 
obligation by the amounts shown below. 

<' in lakhs) 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

Discount rate (0.5% movement) (2 .64) 

Future salary increases (0.5% movement) 2.23 

Attrition rate (0.5 % movement) (0 .61) 
Mortality rate (0.10% movement) 0.01 

2.71 

(1.87) 
0.62 

(2. 12) 

1.87 
(0.47) 

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the 
assumptions shown. 

2 13 

(1.88) 
0.46 

(0.02) 



Narayana llrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Priv11te Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March JI, 2021 (continued) 

32 Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises 
should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure 
in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31 , 2021 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the 
Company. Further in view of the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('The MSMED Act') is not expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier. 

Particulars 

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers 
as at the end of the year 

-Principal 

-Interest 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the 
MSMED Act 

The amount of payments made to micro and small suppliers 
beyond the appointed day during the accounting year; 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond 
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under the MSMED Act; 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of each accounting year 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under the MSMED Act 

As at 
March 31 , 2021 

222.33 

0.14 

0.14 

(~ in lakhs) 
As at 

March 31 , 2020 

124,76 
0.04 

0.04 



Narayana Hn1dayalay11 Surelul Ho1pltal Private Limited 
Notu to the mumclal statemenll ror the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

33 Related party dhdoaurea 

(•) Details of related parlie1 

NRLur-e- orn1n1lmuld 1 Nnme or rclort tJ 111 r 1l rt 

Entt'.mriso hn.vinll control o,•cr lhc C'omn~w N11m 'lllll HrtufavalA\'D Limited 
Kar M nmi g~H1i!:11t Personnel (KMI') Or. Oc.wl Pn.s11d Shelf)'- Ol~1or l\nd Ch11 irm11iu or Iii~ Hotd tns ComJWny 

Shakunlala Shelly - Director (till September 16, 2020) 
Dr. Emmanuel Rupert-Managing Director 
Viren Prnsad Shel1y- Additional Direclor (we r. November 2, 2020) 
Ravindra KS - Chief Financial Officer 
Hami1h Purusholtam - Company S«:rcrt..a.ry 

Kt1)' Mi ll.A:~tmUfll Personnel (KMP) t1f lh11 1 loldlnlJ, Vi ren .Jl t'WJAd Shelt )'• Whoru Timo D11't"Clo1 
CQmp1111 KeJ.aVRH Venugopalan- Chief Financial Officer 

Srldlur S- Co111pWly Secm nry 
J\'1Ul'J)"iU'ln lni1hu.u, ror A•h•N1Cod Re$eArch Pn\'nlc Limili:!d (NlA.IU'L} 
N11rny1uut. Hospilals Prive.le Limiled (NHPL) 
Nat t1}11Uu, Heahh Institutions Privole Limited (NHIPL) 
Nmyrum Cayman Holdings Limited (NCHL) 

lie.llO\V subsidiaries 
Mnr~ffnn Medical Research & Hospital Limited (MMRHL) 

NnrnyrulO Holdings Private Limited (NHDPL) (Subsidiary ofNCHL) 
Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limi ted (NVDSHPL) 
NH Health Bangladesh priva1e Limi1ed (Subsidiary ofNHDPL) 
Health City Cayman Islands Limited (HCCI) (Subsidiary ofNCHL) 
Noroy:irm I lc.11lh North Arn<rlto I.LC 

Entity uni.tar conu ol/ Joh,1 control or KMP/KMP or Nn.mrAI\J\ I hudnylll t1)'a Fo11nt.l ;1llon 
I lo!tflni.! ,;:~m llM\ ' :ind their relrulve:t: Anuu)'llh1 l-le11,llhcnrc Private Limited 
/\SSOC1l\10 o( Holdinlk Cumoruw 'frimodx Jndfo Private Umhc:d 

(b) Transactions with related party dul'ine the ye11r ended March 31 , 2021 

Enterprise havin11: control over the 
Entity under control/ joint conlrol of 

Transaction! 

.. .. ~ .. l'f' lltn l t!I D~ 1•r 

~nrn.ynnn Hrudnyalaya Limited 

f\: AJ1i)'lu1 n Hrudayaloya Foundation 

Total 

Purrhnsti or r ,·om,rty, nl1t11 1 & r u,,111 111, 11 1 

Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 

Unu1cured IOHU lllkfn 

i f't-tl'l rll)'.tnn Hrudayalaya Limited 

lnlt"l'e.~ l l'.lntm;d 

Nt1nynm1 Hrudayalaya Limited 

I Pn,•mtJ1t of 1msecm'f'd to• n 

Nnt'll)'MII Hrudayalaya Limiled 

Kt.l111hu r1en1t 111 or ei:11t: 111u 

N Clfn)'JUlB Hrnd11iy.nl11)11 Limited 

·rctElr·:ullalun Con 

NilfO} ~um Hrudayalaya Limited 

hsue or t auilv 1ht1 rc1 

Naraylllla Hrud11yo.laya Limited 

Cornornle t1w,rnnlrt!. olnn b" holdine comnanv 

Narayana Hrudayalnya Limited 

Purduue ar mt.dlul coau11u1ablr1 nnd dru u 1md Scin fre.1 

Ne!rn)'WHl Hrudayalaya Limited 

1\ m.-irylhs Healthcare Private Limited 

Nnr.Dyruu, V:1i!.1lmo Oe~ri S1,c:dnlL)' I fo,,,itnl.s Pn,•nui 
Lhnited (NVOSI-I Pl-) 

Meridian Medical Research & Hospi lal Limited (MMRHL) 

-r. ,. 1 

Snilt of mrdlral ra u munlilrs ud ll ruf • 1111d St!_rvh:ct 

N"rR)·n,1a Hrudayalaya Limited 

Narayana Vaishno Devi Specially Hospitals Private Limiled 

Short. ft.nn rmnlovte benent • 

Ravindra KS 

Hon,ish Purusholtam 

Toli1I 

1'1uures in brnckeU are for lhe IHllVlOll!I year 
Note: 

company 
l<.Ml1/ KM l1 or Holding company And 

their rflAtl"u 

4•/ Sfo 
f41IJ (,1 

86 34 
/K6,J4) 

49.56 86.34 
{49.561 (86,341 

52 44 
/46 KS 

2,745 00 
(3 Mb.llO 

(,5.l\8 . 
rs-1 9,1 

2.Stl0,110 -
(2 925.00\ 

33.62 
((,t),00} 

11.33 
. 

2,590.5 1 -
(2,127.82 -

3,500,00 
/J 500.00 

,9. lf, 
i:ws21 . 

112 10 
{52 13) 

0 22 
. -

0 59 

59, 16 111,91 
(39,511 {52.LJ l 

74.01 . 
(211.98 . 

u .n 
IU.O 

. . 
-

- . 
. 

I lo l11kh.1J 

Key Management 
Total 

Personnel (KMP) 

49 56 . ,,10 )(,\ 
. 86 34 

/86.34) 
13~.90 

l llS.~U) 

52 44 
"16,K5l 

2,N5 ,llU 
CJ 650.001 

~5.88 
C5'\.9•11 

l ,5ll0,00 
11925,00l 

J1.G2 
(60,UO) 

11 ,33 

- ~.599 51 
(2 12782 

J,SOP.~0 
IJ.511(1.11111 

59 16 
/)~.52\ 
112.10 
(52.13) 

0,22 

0 59 

171,07 
(~1.6~1 

74.01 
/28 9K} 
25.32 
12 60} 

62.75 62,75 
(52 39) (52.J•' 
17 33 17 )3 

1177 1\ 117.711 
S0.07 80-07 

1'70,10) 170.!Ul 

The remuneration to K.MP does nol include the provisions made for gratuity and compensated absences, as they are obtained on an ac1uarial basis for the Company as a whole. ~ - .....- l~ ..... ., 

'The amounts are determined as per section I 7(2) of the Income tax Ac~ 196 I read with the related Rules ~~~7/3"'/ ti 

V ~ 
~ 



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

33 Related party disclosures (continued) 

c) The balances receivable from and payable to related parties 

Balances 
Enterprise having control 

over the company 

Trade payables 

Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 
411.55 

(418.93) 
. 

Amaryllis Healthcare Private Limited . 
-

Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited (NVDSHPL) -
-

Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited (MMRHL) . 
Total 411.55 

(418.93) 
Trade receivables 

-Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospitals Private Limited (NVDSHPL) . 
Corporate guarantee j!iven / released by the holdinl! company ( Net) 

Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 
7,100.00 

(7.100.00) 

Unsecured loan !!iven by the holdin!! comoanv 

Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 
970.00 

(725.00) 

Figures in brackets are for the previous year 

Note: 
(a) No amount in respect of related parties have been written off/back or provided for during the year. 

(b) Related party relationships have been identified by the Management and relied upon by the auditors. 

Entity under control/ joint 
control of fellow subsidiary, 

Total 
KMP/KMP of Holding 

company and their relatives 

. 411.55 

. (418 93) 

0.34 0.34 

(0.79 (0 79) 

14.55 14.55 
. . 

0.59 0 59 
. . 

15.48 427.03 
(0.79) (419.72) 

- . 
(2.60) (2.60) 

. 7,100.00 

. (7.100.00) 

. 970.00 

. (725.00) 

(c)The terms and conditions of the transactions with related parties were no more favourable than those available, or those which might reasonably be expected to be 
available, in respect of similar transactions with other than related entities on an arm's length basis. 

)( 



Narayan• Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private l,lmited 
Notea to the financial ■tatementa for the year ended March JI, 2021 (continued) 

34 Earnings/(Loss) per share 

Basic and diluted loss per share 
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share for the year ended March 31 , 2021 was based on loss attributable to equity shareholders of , 2,677 96 
lakhs (March 31, 2020: f 3,779 80 lakhs) and weighted average number of equity share outstanding 2,34,57,432 (March 31, 2020: 2, 18,48,592). 

(tin lakha. except no or ,hare,) 

Particular., 

Profit/ (loss) after tax 
Total no of shares outstanding 

Effect of shares issued during the year 

Weighted average number of equity ,hare, (ba,ic/diluted) fo r the year 

Basic and diluted eamings/(loss) per share (f) 
(Nominal value per share f I 0) 

35 Capital management 

For the year ended 
March JI, 2021 

(2,678 52) 

22,748,800 

708,632 
23,457.432 

(11.42) 

For the year ended 
March J'l, 2020 

(~.779 80) 

21,465,400 

383,192 
21.848.592 

(17.30) 

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business 
Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the debt to total equity ratio 
For the purpose of debt to total equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings Total equity comprise of issued share capital and all other equity 
reserves 

The capital structure as of March 31 , 2021 and March 31, 2020 was as follows : 

Particulars 

Totol equity attributable to the equity shnrehoklars of the Company 
A, a percentage or total capita I 

Long-Lenn borrowings including current maturities 
Short-term borrowings 
Total borrowings 
As a percentage of total capital 

Total capital (Equity and Borrowing•) 

36 Healthcare Service Agreement with Dharam,hila Cancer Foundation and Re,earch Centre (DCFRC) 

Asal 
M11rcb J I 2 02 1 

(626.89) 
-17% 

2,393 33 
1.ij74 l •I 

4,267-47 
117% 

3,640.~8 

c, in lakh• 

A,at 
M r ah 3 1 2020 

(545,JS) 
-12% 

3,248 68 

1.809 Cl6 
5,058,34 

112% 

4,512.99 

On March 31, 2017, Company entered into Healthcare Services Agreement (' Agreement") with Dhararnshila Cancer Fow,dation and Research Centre ("Society") 

Accordingly, the Company has a control over the operations of Dharamshila Hospital and Research Centre ("Hospital") and provide healthcare services using the 
assets which are owned by the society The arrangement of the Company with the Society attracts the application of business combination as per IND ASI03 The 

Company commenced the provision of healthcare services at the Hospital on 1st April 2017 ('Commencement Date") The term of the Agreement is 25 years, which 

the Parties may extend for a further period on such terms es may be mutually agreed Neither Party shall have the right to terminate the Agreement before IO years of 

the Commencement Date The Hospita l is renamed as "Dhararnshila Narayana Superspeciality Hospital, A Unit of Dharamshila Cancer Foundation And Research 

Centre 11 as per the Agreement 

In tenns of the Agreement, the Society is entitled to retain an annual revenue amount oft \ ,800 lakhs per annum with an annual escalation of 5% during the tenn the 

Company is in control of the operations of the Hospital The fair value, applying the Discounted Cash Flow approach based on discount rate of 15 23% is determined 

by discounting the estimated annual amounts of revenue which the Society is entitled to retain from the Commencement Date The excess amount of such fair value 

over the fair value ofnet assets of the Hospital, which the Company uses in exercise control over the operations of the Hospital, has been attributed towards goodwill 

The fair value accordingly has been attributed to use of the following assets based on Management's estimates: 

Component 

Propc.rty, plant and equipment 
Property usage right 

IJIIAnb~bla assets 
T111 nl 
Goodwill 

Total purcluu e price 

(tin lakhs) 

Acquisition date 
fair vnlue 
3,576.81 
1,639 36 

4,637 00 
9,853.i? 

79000 
10,643.17 

The intangible assets are amortised over a period often years as per management's estimate of its useful life, based on the life over which economic benefits are 
expected to be realized. 

The goodwill amounting to ~ 790 lakhs comprises value of benefits of expected synergies, future revenue, future market developments, assembled workforce, etc 

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. 

The Company has pa id an interest-free refundable security deposit amounting to~ 1.000 lakhs to the Society es per the Agreement. Security deposit was discounted 
and the differential was treated as prepaid rent and amortised over the tenn of the Agreement. 

Refer note 4 and note 38 regarding provision for impairment recognized in the books relating to the Dharamshila unit and the allocation of the same to the ,ta~gi\Jle and 
intangible assets of the Unit _,/ ··•·~ ,, ::; . · 

l..,/ ~"\.-o'.'ol , " " •' if,~ 

~ ~ ::; 
:z: 



N11rayana Hruday1l11y11 SurgiCAI HospitHI Private Limited 
Note, to the Onancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 (continued) 

37 Financi,11 instruments: Fair value and risk managements 

A. Accounting classification and fffir values 

As at March 31 2~21 

Financial anet:1 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than above 
Loans 
Other financial esscts 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 
Lease liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other financial 11, bllhles 

As at March JI , 2020 
FinanciRI asnts 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than above 
Loans 
Other finft 11.oi2I assets 

Finnncial linbilities 

Borrowings 
Leese liabilities 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

Measuremenl or rair values 
The carrying value of all financial assets epproximates the fair value 

8. Financial risk man11gement 

The Company's activities expose it to a veriety of financial risks: credit risk, markel risk and liquidity risk 

(i) Risk management rramework 

Amortised cost 

2,488 22 
145 11 

I 00 

735 98 

1,929 81 
5 300. ll 

3,557. 17 
685 65 

3,853.22 
l0,031 ,27 

18 117.31 

Amortised cost 

3,037 68 
699,68 

I 00 
669 70 

978 64 
5.386.70 

4,371 21 

767 51 

4,058.95 
11,269 00 
20,466.67 

(tin lakhs 

Total 

2,488 ,22 

145 11 
I 00 

735 98 
1,929 81 

5 300.12 

3,557 17 
685 65 

3,853 .22 

10,03 1.27 
I& 27.31 

(tin lakh1) 

Tot•I 

3,037,68 

699 68 

I 00 
669 70 

97&f,lt 
5,386.70 

4,371 21 
767 51 

4,058 95 

11,269 00 

20,466.67 

The Company's risk management jg carried out by a central treasury department under policie!i approved by the Board of Directors The Board supervises overall risk management, as well as 
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk and use of financial ir,slruments 

(ii) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the count(l r1111:rty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or CUi10mc1· contract, leading to financial loss. The credil risk arises principally from its 
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from it , inve!lting activities, including deposits with bnnk1 t'l nd financial institutions and other financial instruments. 

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit The 
collection from the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team 

1'h~ ompany t1Mi1b lishes an nllowiincc lbr credit loss th:ll rc1,rc.11cmts its esti1nL\lU ar C1t'pc-ci ted losses in respect of trade and other receivables based on the past and the recent colrcc.tfnn 1rend 
The me.x1mum o-xposure to cn:idit ri:tk 811 ft l. rt.1,ortin,1; WI. le i-s 11dmnrily from undc ~ivables amounting to~ 2,915 .52 lakhs (March 31 , 2020: ~ 3,682 00 lakhs). The movement ln nUowance 
lbr credn loss In respect of trl\du and other rcccivi,ble!I durina, the year was u fo llows 

Allowanr.e for credit loss 

Opening b•la11c< 
Expected credit lou recognised 

As at 

M•rch 3! , lOl l 

644 32 

(217 02) 
427.J0 

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of March 31 , 2021 and March 31, 2020 There is no significant concentration of credil risk 

~ in Jakhs) 

Asat 
Morch J l, 1020 

366.42 
277 90 

644.32 

Credil risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial iristilutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit 
rating agencies. 



Narayana HrndRyalaya Suraical Hospital Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements Cor the year ended March 31 1 2021 (continued) 

(iii) Liquidity ri,k 
Liquidity risk is 1hr: rts:k that the om~>:my will encounter difficulty in mccllng the obligations associated with its financial liabiHties that are sellled by delivering cash or another financial asset 
The Company's api,ru:u:11 to managinH, nquldity is to ensure, as far as poHlblc, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation In addition, the Company maintains line of credit as stated in Note 14 

The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived, 

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabililies as of March 31, 2021 
f in lol<hs) 

r11rcic11lat1'1 l..cs:t 1hn11 I 2·ear I • 2 t•• rs 2•5 l un \\tort 011u1 5 l'. cart T Olnl 
Borrowings 1,874 14 735 92 653 85 293 26 3,557 17 

Lease liabilities 108 98 118,02 90 58 )68.07 685.65 

Trade payables 3,853 22 3,853 22 

Other financi_al llnbilitic.1 1.366 08 479 65 8, 127 94 57.60 10,031 27 

Toi.I 7 202.42 l 333.59 8 87?,37 718.93 18127,Jl 

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabililies as of March 3 l, 2020; 

fin l•khs) 
Pi1r1 k.11I•-, I .CIU than J l l"n r 1-l ~tnrs 2 .. 5 ltll n More than 5 l rJll'I T u1, 1 

Oorrowinu11 2,666.79 708.52 562.84 433,06 4,371 21 

Lease liabilities 81 86 108,98 196 58 380 09 767 51 
Trade payobles 4,058.95 4,058 95 

Other financial liabilities 2,062 97 9 165. 19 38.98 I 86 1126900 
Tolal 8,870.57 9,982.69 798.40 815.01 20,466.67 

(iv) Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair vaJue of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates 

Cash now and fair value i11terest rale risk 

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long•term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to ca.sh flow interest rate risk 

(a) lnterest rate risk exposure 

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at lhe end of reporting period with respect to long term borrowings with variable interest rates rrom banks are as follows : 

PAl'llcuh,n 
Varlo.ble ~te laag term horrowlt1J-\" lncludjng culTilrn nrntuf'llias 
Tobi borrowin s 

(b) Sensitivity 

Aset 
March JI , 2021 

t In lnkh, 
J RI 

March l l , 20211 

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk 

Particulars 

Sensitivity 
I% increase in MCLR rate 
I% decrease in MCLR rate 

lmpnct on pront or loss 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

As at 
March 31, 2020 

The inlc,t.i rate ,cn,l1ivlly Ii b.,,d on 1he ulq,ln~ bnlnnce orsecurod term 100 111 rrom banka 

38 Exceptional item1 

Impact on other 
components of equity 

? in lokhs) 

As at As Ill 
March 31, 2021 Morch 31, 2020 

The Compnny ilad carried out an impairment osscument of one of the Cash Generating Units i.e, Dharamshila Narayan& Super Speciality Hospital (hereinafter referred to as "the CGU") due 
to the continued losses incurred in the CGU. Uu ed on the detailed impairment evaluation carried out by the Company duly considering the future cash nows of the CGU, the Company has 
recorded an impairment off I 086 99 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2020 pertaining to the carrying value for tangible, intangible assets and goodwill (hereinafter collectively referred 
to as ("Assets") and has disclosed the same as an exceptional item in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

l9 The Company has entered a Consultancy contract with The Governmenl or St Lucia (GOSL) on October 7, 2020 for a period of2 years lo co.ordinate and share expertise on transition of 
Victoria Hospital to Owen king European Union Hospital (OKEUH) and provide advisory and consultancy services for management of operations ofOKEUH with a view to ensuring that 

( lobol besl practices ore adhered lo ' . 

~ 
' f ; 

i 



N11rayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited 
Notes lo the nnancial statements for the year ended March 31 1 2021 (continued) 

40 On Merch 11, 2020, the World Heehh Orgonizetion declared COVlD-19 a global pandemic end suggested guidelines for containment and mitigetion worldwide Whilst QI of FY202 I was 
severely impacted due to the pandemic, the Company's operations started to graduelly increase during Q2 and Q3 of FY2 I consequent to the reduction of the impact of the pandemic. With 
the increase in the severity of the outbreak towards the end of Q4 of FY2 I and subsequent to March 31, 2021, the state governments have re-imposed various restrictions and lockdowns 

The pandemic has impacted the operations of the Company during the year ended March 3 J, 202 l and the Company continues to actively manage its business, including taking various 
initiatives to optimise costs and meet its financial commitments, duly considering the evolving nature of the pandemic and the estimated duration of its impact. As at March 31, 2021, the 
Management hat uaed internal and e(tc111nl soun:iu~ ofinfa rma.tlon upto the date of n1,prov1.1I oflhese financial statements/results, including availability of banking facilities for maintaining 
liquidity for its up.:rntlons, in determining 1hu Impact of OVID-19 pandemic, The Management has used the principles of prudence in developing estimates, assumptions, exercising 
judgements and performing sen,itivity analy1is. The Company as of the reporting date does not expect any long term 11dvcrse impact of COVlD-19 on its ability to recover the carrying value 
of its currenl assets and non-current assets including trade receivables, property, plant and equipment and intangibla ~11ctt and meeting its financial obligations. 

The eventual outcome of the impact of the pandemic may be different from that estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements and any significant impact of these changes 
would be recognized in the flnancial statements as and when these material changes to economic conditions arise. 

41 Code on Soci•I Security 2020 
1"t)i, 'ode an Soi::fal e4.1irh)', 202°0 ("lhc Code~) whi cl1 w<n.1 ld impnul 1ha c:0 nt~butlon1 by 1h~ Comprmy 1i:iw.nrd!I Prcvldom r:u 11d nr,d Grntuity 1uu1 rtH.::4:Jlvcd 11resldc11tioJ MSclll In Supu~mber 
2()20, The Code hnvo b••n ~ubli1htd 111 the Qo,c Ltc orlndl,. I lowavcr, tt>c d11e rrorn which the Code wil l coma iruo 01T0<1 h•• 1101 beoH nollflcd Thu Mi nl,u}' ort,.11boo, and ll1nploy111ent 
(Minl•try) h.i relcA!cd draft nile> for tho CaJe on November IJ , 2020 ond hu Invited •u!!l!c,uons from 11okcholdc1:s whloh nrc undar allliva con,idorntlon by tho Minl,try. Tito Com11ony will 

,yhplatc iu cv•l11 01io 11 ••1d wil l Mi•• 1p11ro11rln1e imp,c t 1111, Clltrl!OlidtUad 0nonci•I 1t0rcn,cn11 in tho period in which the Code. beco111C! l!lfocllvo •nd tho relotcd t'ulca ~•• published , 

For end on bcht1 l f"oftho Board of Directors of 
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